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CX-0313C at Qs. 240-241, 276-277, 311-312; CPX-0010C; JX-0036C at 9-12; CX-0193C at 4

14; CPX-0019C; CX-0122C; JX-0035C at 9-12).) Complainant avers that Respondents do not
dispute that the D1 Chips meet these limitations of claim 1. (Id.)

Complainant argues that the ﬁrst pad layer and compound layer snucture are spaced apart
from the lower electric-conduction layer in the DI Chips. (Id. at 57 (citing CPX-0009C; CX
0123C; JX-0034C at 13-17; CX-0192C at 3-25; CX-0313C at Qs. 242, 244-245, 278, 280-281,
288, 313, 315-316, 323; CPX-0010C; JX-0036C at 13-17; CX-0193C at 1-30; CPX-0019C; CX
0122C; JX-0035C at 13-17).) {

} Thus, Complainant argues that the lower electric-conduction layer

is not only physically separated, but “sufficiently separated to provide electromagnetic isolation,
or shielding from noise from the substrate.” (Id. (citing CX-0313C at Q. 242).) Complainant

avers Respondents dispute only whether the DI Chips meet this limitation under Complainanfs
proposed construction of “spaced apart.” (1d.)
Complainant argues that the DI Chips include a second pad layer formed on the
insulation layer and coupled to the lower electric-conduction layer. (Id. at 58 (citing CPX
0009C; CX-0123C; JX-0034C at 18-25; CX-0192C at 3-25; CX-0313C at Qs. 243, 279, 314; 

CPX-0010C; JX-0036C at 18-27; CX-0193C at 1-28; CPX-0019C; CX-0122C; JX-0035C at 18

27).) Complainant avers that Respondents do not dispute that the DI Chips meet these
limitations of claim 1. (1d.)
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Complainant says that in the D1Chips the compound layer structure comprises a ﬁrst

electric-conduction layer and a ﬁrst connecting layer to couple the ﬁrst electric-conduction layer
to the ﬁrst pad layer as recited in dependent claim 2. (Id at 60 (citing CPX-0009C; CX-0123C;
JX-0034C at 26-27; CX-0192C at 5-8; CX-0313C at Qs. 253, 289, 324; CPX-0010C; IX-0036C
at 28-29; CX-0193C at 9-14; CPX-0019C; CX-0122C; JX-0035C at 28-29).)

Complainant states that in the DI Chips, the ﬁrst connecting layer comprises a plurality of
via plugs as recited in dependent claim 3. (Id. at 60-61 (citing CPX-0009C; CX-0123C; JX
0034C at 28-29; CX-0192C at 6; CX-0313C at Qs. 254, 290, 325; CPX-0010C; JX-0036C at 30

31; CX-0193C at 10-13; CPX-0019C; CX-0122C; JX-0035C at 30-31).)

Complainant says that in the DI Chips, the ﬁrst pad layer is shaped like a polygon as
recited in dependent claim 6. (Id. at 61 (citing CPX-0009C; CX-0123C; JX-0034C at 30; CX
O192C at 2-4; CX-0313C at Qs. 255, 291, 326; CPX-0010C; JX-0036C at 32; CX-0193C at 1

11; CPX-0019C; CX-0122C; JX-0035C at 32).)

Complainant asserts that the DI Chips include a passivation layer fonned on the

insulation layer to cover a part of the outer rim of at least one of the ﬁrst and second pad layers
as recited in dependent claim 7. (Id (citing CPX-0009C; CX-0123C; JX-0034C at 31; CX
0313C at Qs. 256, 292, 327; CPX-0010C; JX-0036C at 33; CPX-0019C; CX-0122C; JX-0035C
at 33).)

Complainant states that the DI Chips include at least one second connection layer for

coupling the second pad layer to the lower electric-conduction layer as recited in dependent
claim 8. (Id. at 62 (citing CPX-0009C; CX-0123C; JX-0034C at 32-37; CX-0192C at 9-23; CX
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0313C at Qs. 257, 293, 328; CPX-0010C; JX-0036C at 34-42; CX-0193C at 14-28; CPX-0019C;

CX-0122C; JX-0035C at 34-42).)

Complainant avers that the DI Chips include at least one second electric-conduction layer

coupled between the second pad layer and the lower electric-conduction layer with the second
connecting layer as recited in dependent claim 9. (Id. (citing CPX-0009C; CX-0123C; JX
0034C at 38-43; CX-0192C at 9-23; CX-0313C at Qs. 258, 295, 329; CPX-0010C; JX-0036C at

43-51; CX-0193C at 14-27; CPX-0019C; CX-0122C; JX-0035C at 43-51).)

Complainant asserts that in the DI Chips, a noise from the substrate is kept away from the
ﬁrst pad layer by the lower electric-conduction layer as recited in dependent claim 10. (Id. at 58

(citing CPX-0009C; CX-0123C; JX-0034C at 44; CX-0192C at 3-25; CX-0313C at Qs. 259-260,
295-296, 330-331; CPX-0010C; JX-0036C at 52; CX-0193C at 1-32; CPX-0019C; CX-0122C;
JX-0035C at 51-52).) {

} Complainant avers

that Respondents do not dispute that the DI Chips meet the additional limitations of claim 2-3
and 6-10. (Id. at 58-62.)

Respondents’ Position: Respondents argue that the D1 Chips do not practice claim 1 of

the ‘928 patent under C0mplainant’s proposed construction of “spaced apart.” Speciﬁcally,

Respondents argue that under Complainant’s proposed construction of “spaced apa11”4which
requires electromagnetic isolation—Dr. Walker has not provided any evidence that (1) the ﬁrst
pad layer and compound layer structure are electromagnetically isolated from the lower electric
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conduction layer, or (2) that the ﬁrst pad layer and compound layer structure are
electromagnetically isolated from the substrate. (RIB at 54 (citing RX-0285C at Q. 147).)

Analysis and Conclusion: As a threshold matter, I ﬁnd that Complainant has failed to
meet the technical prong of the domestic industry requirement because it has not proven that the
DI Chips practice a valid claim of the ‘928 patent. To meet the technical prong, Complainant

must show that its DI Chips practice a valid claim of the ‘928 patent. See Certain Audiovisual
Components and Products Containing the Same, Inv. No. 337-TA-837, Comm’n Op. at 33
(March 10, 2014). As explained above, claims 1-3 and 6-10 of the ‘928 patent are anticipated by

prior art and are therefore invalid. (See supra Sections IV.B-C.) Thus, Complainant has failed

to show that its DI Chips practice a valid claim of the ‘928 patent.
Assuming arguendo that claims 1-3 and 6-10 of the ‘928 patent were not invalid, I ﬁnd

that Complainant has proven by a preponderance of the evidence that its DI Chips practice
claims 1-3 and 6-10 of the ‘928 patent. As summarized above, Complainant has submitted

substantial evidence that all the limitations of claim 1 are met by the DI Chips. Respondents do

not seem to dispute that the DI Chips contain all elements of claim 1 except for the limitation

that the “ﬁrst pad layer and the compound layer structure are spaced apart from the lower

electric-conduction layer.” (RIB. at 54.) Respondents argue that if Complainant’s proposed
construction of the term “spaced apart” is adopted, the DI Chips do not meet this limitation

because Dr. Walker failed to provide any evidence that the ﬁrst pad layer and the compound

layer structure are electromagnetically isolated from the lower electric-conduction layer or from

the substrate. (Ia'.) As discussed in Section III.B.2, supra, Complainanfs proposed construction
of “spaced apart” has been rejected and the plain and ordinary meaning of “spaced apart” does
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not include a requirement of electromagnetic isolation. {

}

Under the plain and ordinary language of “spaced apart,” the DI Chips meet the “spaced apart”

limitation. Therefore, I ﬁnd that Complainant has proven by a preponderance of the evidence
that the DI Chips practice claim 1 of the ‘928 patent.

Also as shown above, Complainant has submitted substantial evidence that all the
limitations of claims 2-3 and 6-10 are met by the DI Chips. Respondents do not seem to dispute

that the DI Chips meet the limitations of claims 2-3 and 6-10, nor have they produced any
evidence to rebut the Comp1ainant’s evidence. (See RIB at 54; RRB at 35; CX-0285C at Qs.

145-148.) Therefore, I ﬁnd that Complainant has proven by a preponderance of the evidence
that the DI Chips practice claims 2-3 and 6-10 of the ‘928 patent.
Although claims 1-3 and 6-10 are practiced by the DI Chips, because claims 1-3 and 6-10

are invalid, I ﬁnd that Complainant has not met the technical prong of the domestic industry

requirement.

VII. REMEDY & BONDING

A. Limited Exclusion Order
C0mplainant’s Position: Realtek contends that it is entitled to a permanent limited
exclusion order directed to the accused {

} the accused LSI {

accused Seagate Products incorporating the LSI {
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that the importation requirement in 19 U.S.C. §1337(a)(1)(B) is met with respect to products that
contain the {

} integrated circuit chip, the {

LuxorLite 1.0 integrated circuit chip, and the {

} integrated circuit chip, the

} integrated circuit chip. Realtek states that

Seagate’s products are devices that incorporate the infringing LSI chips. Realtek states that

Seagate stipulated that the importation requirement of 19 U.S.C. §1337(a)(1)(B) is met with
respect to products that contain the infringing {

} chips including the following product lines:

{

}

Realtek notes that the Commission has the authority to exclude downstream products that
contain infringing component parts, and that an EPROMs analysis is not necessary to determine

whether an exclusion order should cover downstream products of named respondents like

Seagate. Nevertheless, Realtek presents its analysis of the EPROMs factors.“
As to factor 1), Realtek states that LSI’s {

} are critical to the operation of the

Seagate hard drives that incorporate them. Realtek referred to the testimony of Respondents’

witnesses to demonstrate that the Seagate products derive signiﬁcant value from the accused
bond pads. (CIB at 131-32 (citing CX-0314C at Qs. 131, 137; CX-0043C at 118:13-12029).) As

to factor 2), Realtek states that the identity of the manufacturer of the downstream products,
Seagate, is clear, because Seagate is a named respondent. (Id. at 132 (citing CX-0314C at Q.

138).) As to factor 3), Realtek states that an exclusion order will expedite the negotiation of
licensing agreements. (Id. (citing CX-0314C at Q. 139).) Realtek states further that, without an

exclusion order covering downstream products, Respondents could evade the order by

46See Certain Erasable Programmable Read-Only Memories, Components Thereof Products Containing Such
Memories, and'Processes for Making Such Memories, Inv. No. 337-TA'-276, Comm’n Op., 1989 WL 1716252, at
*88 (May 1989), rev’d on other grounds sub nom. Intel Corp. v. ITC, 946 F.2d 821 (Fed. Cir. 1991).
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continuing to import Seagate products with infringing chips installed outside of the United
States. Tuming to factor 4), Realtek states that an exclusion order would block all downstream

accused products and force respondents to negotiate a license agreement with Realtek or replace
LSI’s accused products with a non-infringing product. (Id. at 132-133 (citing CX-0314C at Q.
140).) Realtek states that Seagate already purchases a variant of the {

competitor, {

} from LSI’s

} Realtek states that a waiting period could be incorporated in the exclusion

order to permit Seagate to ﬁnd an alternate supplier. With respect to factor 5) Realtek states that
there will be no burden imposed on third party consumers and products suppliers because good
substitutes exist for the downstream accused products. {

} compete

with Seagate in the global hard drive market, Realtek states, with {
the market, {

} of the market, and {

} of

} of the market. (Id. at 133 (citing CX

0314C at Q. 141).) With respect to factor 6), Realtek states that there are substitutes for the
downstream hard drives and the upstream hard drive controller chips. (Id. at 133-134 (citing

CX-0314C at Q. 143).) Realtek states that the EPROM factors 7-9 all weigh in favor of issuing a

pennanent limited exclusion order.
Realtek maintains that no “ongoing” domestic industry requirement exists and cites Dr.
Leonard’s testimony that Realtek has continued to develop and implement the { } IPs during the

2011-2012 period. (CRB at 45-46 (citing CX-0314C at Q. 89).) Realtek asserts that a quarterly

reporting requirement is not justified because Respondents failed to present sufﬁcient evidence
that Rea1tek’s domestic activities no longer exist. Realtek also states that any waiting period in

favor of Seagate should be “very limited.”
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Respondents’ Position: Respondents contend that Realtek is not entitled to any remedy
because there is no evidence that Realtek’s domestic industry is ongoing. Alternatively,

Respondents state that a limited exclusion order should be coupled with a reporting requirement
to ensure ongoing domestic activities. Respondents state that Realtek’s domestic industry is
based on R&D between 2003 and 2008 on the { } IPs incorporated into the DI Chips, and on

consultation and ﬁne-tuning provided by Realcom engineers in 2011 and 2012 related to the
same IPs. (RIB at 123 (citing RX-0277C at lO4:16-105213, 106120-107:5, 122211-24).)

Respondents state there is no evidence in the record of speciﬁc examples of work related to the
DI Chips in 2011, 2012, or at present. Respondents assert that a quarterly reporting requirement

would be necessary if any form of remedy were deemed appropriate. Respondents also state
that, if a limited exclusion order is entered against Seagate, the order should include a six to 12

month waiting period to permit Seagate to ﬁnd replacement chips without disruption to its
business.

Conclusions and Analysis: No violation of section 337 has been found. Should the
Commission ﬁnd a violation of section 337, I recommend that the Commission issue a limited
exclusion order that applies to Respondents as well as all of their afﬁliated companies, parents,
subsidiaries, or other related business entities, or their successors or assigns, and covers the
certain integrated circuit chips and products containing same found to infringe the ‘928 patent. I

recommend that any limited exclusion order include a six month waiting period to permit
Respondent Seagate to replace the accused chips with non-infringing chips. I also recommend

that Realtek be required to submit to the Commission a quarterly report in which Realtek will
certify that it continues to maintain a domestic industry with respect to the DI Chips and will
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specify the nature of the activities that constitute the domestic industry, including the names of
individuals working on the pertinent IPs, the amount of their time devoted to speciﬁc IPs, and
their particular activities related to DI products during each quarter.

B. Cease & Desist Order
Complainant’s Position: Realtek says that to obtain a cease and desist order, a
complainant bears the burden to show that a respondent has a commercially signiﬁcant inventory
of infringing imports in the U.S. (CIB at 134.) Realtek states that “at least” Seagate’s {

} chips are shipping and include the infringing {

} (CIB at 134 (citing CX

0058C at 112:20-113:9; CX 0061C, CX—0058Cat 114:6-21); see also JX-0047C).) Realtek

maintains that, because Seagate has a commercially signiﬁcant inventory of its accused products
in the U.S., a cease and desist order should issue to enjoin Seagate from selling, marketing,

distributing and advertising the products in this coimtry. Realtek reiterates that Seagate has

inventory in the United States of drives that contain infringing chips but again points to no

evidence of the amount of such inventory.

Respondents’ Position: Respondents state that Realtek has failed to meet its burden of
proving that a cease and desist order should issue. Respondent states that there is no evidence
that LSI has any inventory of the accused {

} chips in the United States, and the

amount of Seagate accused products held in inventory in the United States is insufﬁcient to
warrant issuance of a cease and desist order. If such an order is issued against Seagate,

Respondents seek a six- to l2-month waiting period.

Conclusions and Analysis: Section 337 provides that the Connnission may issue a cease
190

PUBLIC VERSION
and desist order as a remedy for violation of section 337. See 19 U.S.C. § 1337(f)(1). The

Commission generally issues a cease and desist order directed to a domestic respondent when

there is a “commercially signiﬁcant” amount of infringing, imported product in the United States
that could be sold so as to undercut the remedy provided by an exclusion order. See Certain

Crystalline Cefadroxil Monohydrate, Inv. No. 337-TA-293, USITC Pub. 2391, Comm’n Op. on

Remedy, the Public Interest and Bonding at 37-42 (June 1991); Certain Condensers, Parts

Thereof and Products Containing Same, Including Air Conditioners for Automobiles, Inv. No.
337-TA-334, Comm’n Op. at 26-28 (Aug. 27, 1997). The complainant bears the burden of

proving that a respondent has a commercially signiﬁcant inventory in the United States. Certain
Integrated Repeaters, Switches, Transceivers & Products Containing Same, Inv. No. 337—TA
435, Comrn’n Op., 2002 WL 31359028 (Aug. 16, 2002).

Realtek has submitted evidence that Seagate hard drives incorporating the infringing
chips have been shipped to the United States, but has not submitted evidence indicating how
many are in inventory. Realtek has pointed to no evidence that LS1has any inventory of the
accused {

} in the United States, and no evidence of the amount

of accused products that have been shipped by Seagate to the United States. Accordingly, it is

impossible to determine on this record whether the amount of inventory is signiﬁcant. Realtek
has failed to carry its burden to demonstrate that a cease and desist order should issue, and if a
violation is found, I do not recommend issuance of a cease and desist order against LSI or
Seagate.

C. Bonding
C0mplainant’s Position: Realtek notes that the Commission may base its bond
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calculation on a price differential between the complainant’s and the respondents’ products, or

on alternative approaches, including a “reasonable royalty” theory, where there is evidence in the

record as to the amount of such a royalty. Realtek states that “[b]ecause the evidence and

testimony showed that no meaningful price differential can be calculated and that Realtek has not
licensed the ‘928 Patent, Respondents should be required to post a 100% bond.” (CIB at 135.)

Realtek agrees with Respondents that Realtek’s chips do not compete with LSI’s chips or
Seagate’s products, stating that a price differential analysis therefore cannot be used to set the
bond. Realtek also states that the reasonable royalty approach cannot be used {
} Realtek argues that in such circumstances, “the Commission

typically imposes a 100% bond.” (CRB at 50 (citing Certain Liquid Crystal Display Modules,
Products Continuing Same, and Methods using the Same, Inv. No. 337-TA-634, Cormn’n Op.,
2009 WL 4087135, at *3 (November 24, 2009).)

Respondents’ Position: Respondents assert that there is no evidence that Realtek suffers
any economic harm as a result of Respondents’ importation, because the “LSI and Seagate
products do not compete with any Realtek products,” (RIB at 127.) Respondents state that the
DI Chips are Wi-Fi chips that are manufactured and sold outside the United States, “unlike the

accused LS1chips.” (Id.) Respondents state further that the Complainant does not service the

Wi-Fi chips in the United States. (Id) Respondents argue that no bond would be appropriate,
because there is no evidence in the record to support the necessity of a bond to offset any

competitive advantage. Respondents argue in the altemative that, even if a bond were
appropriate, Realtek has failed to meet its burden to support the amotmt of the bond, because

Realtek has not provided evidence concerning a price differential or an established royalty.
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Respondents rcply that a bond should not be required but, if a bond is imposed, it should
be no greater than 3.3% of the value of the LS1 semiconductor chips at issue, which Respondents
state was the median royalty rate in the semiconductor industry in 2012. (RRB at 48 (citing RX

286C at Qs. 240-243).)

Conclusions and Analysis: In the event that the Commission ﬁnds a violation and
determines to order a remedy, the Commission must determine the amount of bond to be
required of a respondent, pursuant to section 337(j)(3), during the 60-day Presidential review

period following the issuance of permanent relief. The purpose of the bond is to protect the
complainant from injury during the 60-day period. 19 C.F.R. §§ 2l0.42(a)(l)(ii), 210.50(a)(3).

The complainant has the burden of supporting the amount of any bond it proposes. Certain

Rubber Antidegradants, Components Thereof and Products Containing Same, No. 337-TA-533,
Comm’n Op., 2008 WL 1727623, at *25 (Jul. 13, 2006), vacated on other grounds sub nom.
Sinorgchem C0. v. Int ’l Trade Comm ’n, 511 F.3d 1132 (Fed. Cir. 2007).

The parties agree that a bond based on price differential or reasonable royalty is not
practicable here. The question is Whether in the absence of those two methods Realtek is entitled
to a bond of 100%.

The Commission has set a bond of 100% when the evidence supported a ﬁnding that it

would be difﬁcult or impossible to calculate a bond based on price differentials. See Liquid
CI’)/SIEII,
2009 WL 4087135, at *3 (determining that price differential calculation was impractical

because “the pricing data of record demonstrates that no meaningful price comparison can be
performed” due to the number of products sold by the parties and the variety of features in the
products in the investigation). The Commission in Liquid Crystal also fotmd that a reasonable
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royalty rate could not be calculated because the royalty rate analysis “speciﬁcally excluded three
of the four patents-in-suit in this investigation.” Id; see also Variable Speed Wind Turbines,
Comm’n Op., 1996 WL 1056209, at *l6 (ﬁnding that a bond of 100% was appropriate “because

of the difﬁculty in quantifying the cost advantages of respondents’ imported Enercon E-40 wind

turbines and because of price ﬂuctuations due to exchange rates and market conditions”);
Certain SystemsFor Detecting and Removing Viruses or Worms, Components Thereof and

Products Containing Same, lnv. No. 337-TA-510, Cornm’n Op., 2007 WL 4473083, at *l7
(Aug. 23, 2005) (imposing a bond of 100% based on a ﬁnding that the parties had numerous

models and product lines, and that a price comparison would be difﬁcult because respondent’s

products were a combination of hardware and software while the complainant’s products were

software only); Certain Flash Memory Circuits and Products Containing Same, Inv. No. 337
TA-382, USITC Pub. No. 3046, Comm’n Op. at 26-27 (July 1997) (a 100% bond imposed when

price comparison was not practical because the parties sold products at different levels of
commerce, and the proposed royalty rate appeared to be de minimis and without adequate
support in the record).

The record in this case does not justify the imposition of a 100% bond. Here, Realtek
admits it has no products that compete with LSI’s and Seagate’s products at issue in this
Investigation, whether those Realtek products utilize the ‘928 patent or not. {

} Realtek has made no effort in its brieﬁng of these issues to

explain why, without a bond, it would be harmed in these circumstances. Since Realtek has

presented neither evidence nor argument to explain how it would be harmed by the importation
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of infringing products during the Presidential review period, I do not recommend that the
Commission impose a bond if it ﬁnds a violation of section 337.

VIII. MATTERS NOT DISCUSSED
This Initial Determination’s failure to discuss any matter raised by the parties, or any

portion of the record, does not indicate that it has not been considered. Rather, any such

matter(s) or portion(s) of the record has/have been determined to be irrelevant, immaterial or
rneritless. Arguments made on brief which were otherwise unsupported by record evidence or
legal precedent have been accorded no weight.

IX. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
l. The Commission has subject matter jurisdiction, in rem jurisdiction,” and

inpersonam jurisdiction.
2. Except with respect to LSI’s {

}

there has been an importation into the United States, sale for importation, or sale within the
United States after importation of the accused {

products containing LSI’s {

} chips and Seagate

} chips, which are the subject of the alleged unfair trade

allegations.
3. An industry does not exist in the United States that exploits U.S. Pat. No. 6,787,928
as required by 19 U.S.C. § l337(a)(2).
4. Claims 1-10 of U.S. Pat. No. 6,787,928 are invalid pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 102.

5. Claims 4-5 of U.S. Patent No. 6,787,928 are invalid pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 103.

6. Claim l0 of U.S. Patent No. 6,787,928 is not invalid pmsuant to 35 U.S.C. § 112.

"7Except with respect to LSl’s {

l95

}

PUBLIC VERSION
7. The accused {

} and Seagate Products literally infringe claims 1-3 and 6

9 of U.S. Patent No. 6,787,928.
8. The accused {

} literally infringe claims 1-10 of U.S. Patent No.

6,787,928.
9.

There is no violation of 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(1)(B) with respect to U.S. Pat. N0.

6,787,928.

X. ORDER
Based on the foregoing, and the record as a whole, it is my Final Initial Determination
that there is not a violation of 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(1)(B) in the sale for importation, the

importation into the United States, and the sale after importation into the United States, of the
accused {

} chips and Seagate products containing {

}

I hereby CERTIFY to the Commission my Final Initial and Recommended
Determinations together Withthe record consisting of the exhibits admitted into evidence. The

pleadings of the parties ﬁled with the Secretary, and the transcript of the pre-hearing conference
and the hearing, as Wellas other exhibits, are not certiﬁed, since they are already in the

Commission’s possession in accordance with Commission rules.

It is further ORDERED that:
In accordance with Commission Rule 210.39, all material heretofore marked in camera

because of business, ﬁnancial and marketing data fotmd by the administrative law judge to be
cognizable as conﬁdential business information under Commission Rule 201.6(a), is to be given

in camera treatment continuing after the date this Investigation is terminated.
The initial determination portion of the Final Initial and Recommended Determination,
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issued pursuant to Commission Rule 2l0.42(a)(l)(i), shall become the determination of the
Commission sixty (60) days after the service thereof, unless the Commission, within that period,

shall have ordered its review of certain issues therein, or by order, has changed the effective date

of the initial determination portion. If the Commission determines that there is a violation of 19

U.S.C. § l337(a)(l), the recommended determination portion, issued pursuant to Commission
Rule 210.42(a)(1)(ii), will be considered by the Commission in reaching a determination on

remedy and bonding pursuant to Commission Rule 2l0.50(a).
On or before March 31, 2014, the parties shall submit to the Ofﬁce of Administrative

Law Judges ajoint statement regarding whether or not they seek to have any portion of this
document deleted from the public version. The parties’ submission shall be made by hard copy

and must include a copy of this Initial Determination with red brackets indicating any portion
asserted to contain conﬁdential business information to be deleted from the public version. The
parties’ submission shall include an index identifying the pages of this document where proposed
redactions are located. The parties’ submission concerning the public version of this document

need not be ﬁled with the Commission Secretary.

SO ORDERED.

Issued:

DATE

&()l4

FD”

Dee Lord
Administrative Law Judge
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